
ITEM 3 

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)  
Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2025 

 
1. Call to Order 

Vice Chair Uy called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  

Name Agency Jan 
2025 

Mar 
2025 

Public   

Matthew Self County of San Mateo X  
Malcolm Robinson San Bruno  X 
Alan Uy – Vice Chair Daly City  X 
Angela Hey Portola Valley X  
Justin Yuen South San Francisco X X 
Mike Swire - Chair San Mateo X  

Elected   
    
Flor Nicolas South San Francisco  X* 
Mary Bier Pacifica X X 
Patrick Sullivan Foster City X X 
Desiree Thayer Burlingame X* X 
Stephen Rainaldi Millbrae  X** 

*Attended meeting online via Assembly Bill 2449. 

**First meeting. 

C/CAG Staff present: Audrey Shiramizu, Kaki Cheung.  

Guests: Karen Kinser (City of Brisbane), Asha Weinstein Agrawal (Mineta Transportation 
Institute), Matt Jones (Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition), Andy Murillo, and others in attendance.  
 
C/CAG Vice Chair Alan Uy introduced the newest Elected Official Member, Councilmember 
Stephen Rainaldi from the City of Millbrae. The Vice Chair also announced that Public Member 
Marina Fraser from the City of Half Moon Bay resigned from the Committee and thanked her for 
her service.  
 
2. Public comment on items not on the agenda 

 
There were no public comments.  



 
3. Approval of the Minutes from the January 23, 2025 Meeting 

 
There were no public comments on the minutes.  
 
Motion: Member Bier motioned to approve the minutes. Member Robinson seconded the 
motion. Members Uy, Nicolas, and Rainaldi abstained. All other members in attendance 
voted to approve. The motion passed. 

4. Review and recommend approval of request for reallocation of Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Article 3 FY 2022/23 funds for the Pedestrian Walkway – 
Alvarado Street to San Benito Road Project for the City of Brisbane. 
 
Karen Kinser from the City of Brisbane presented on the Pedestrian Walkway – Alvarado 
Street to San Benito Road Project for the City of Brisbane and the request for reallocation and 
time extension.  

 
Member Bier asked about the heritage tree ordinance. Karen noted the team is working on 
receiving a quote for the work. 
 
Member Uy asked if the overage in costs will be covered by other non-TDA funds. Karen 
noted that funds are needed to remove the trees. 
 
Member Uy asked for renderings of the project. Karen noted that drawings are available.  
 
Motion: Member Robinson motioned to recommend approval of request for reallocation of 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 FY 2022/23 funds for the Pedestrian 
Walkway – Alvarado Street to San Benito Road Project for the City of Brisbane. Member 
Yuen seconded the motion. All members in attendance voted to approve. The motion passed. 

 
5. Receive a presentation on the Electric Bike Safety Policy Study from the Mineta 

Transportation Institute. 
 
Dr. Asha Weinstein Agrawal from the Mineta Transportation Institute presented a research 
project in progress titled “E-Bike Safety Policy Study.”  
 
Member Robinson asked if any states require a driver or written test for e-bikes. Dr. Agrawal 
responded no. 
 
Member Nicolas noted that the City of South San Francisco had two incidents related to e-
bike overcharging in a multifamily building. Dr. Agrawal acknowledged battery risks, and 
that New York City passed a law requiring e-bike batteries meet safety standards. She noted 
that there are no national safety policies or rules. She also cautioned banning charging in 
multifamily buildings, which may create a barrier for e-biking. 
 



Member Sullivan suggested e-bikes include instruction booklets about speed and usage. Dr. 
Agrawal noted that speed limiters may not be helpful and suggested speed limits.  
 
Member Rainaldi noted that Millbrae uses geofencing for e-bikes on some trails.  
 
Member Robinson noted the importance of safety education and public engagement. Dr. 
Agrawal noted that many people do not know the different classifications of bicycles and e-
bikes. 
 
Public Member Matt Jones asked if Dr. Agrawal’s team works on legislation. Dr. Agrawal 
noted that the team focuses on research and making recommendations, not advocacy. 
 
Member Yuen asked about exposure data, total number of e-bikes used, and miles traveled. 
Dr. Agrawal noted that collecting biking and walking data is difficult. Tools include 
counters, surveys, and household travel surveys.  
 
Vice Chair Uy noted that only 30% of e-bike injuries were related to car collisions and 
seemed low. Dr. Agrawal noted there is limited data from emergency rooms but that other 
incidents included hitting things like curbs.  
 
Members Bier and Rainaldi suggested other forms of data collection, like smart cameras and 
image recognition.  
 
Public Member Matt Jones asked if bikeshare operators provided data. Dr. Agrawal did not 
receive any data. She noted some cities require crash and injury data from bikeshare 
operators. 
 
Member Sullivan asked if there was data about injuries and helmet-wearing. Dr. Agrawal 
noted that the data was not clear or obvious from emergency rooms.  
 
Member Robinson asked about the types of electric wheeled vehicles the team researched. 
Dr. Agrawal noted the team was interested in rules of the road for all devices and that 
typology should be consistent. 
 
Member Robinson asked about micromobility. Dr. Agrawal noted that most trips are short 
and doable on e-bikes or scooters, but the barrier is a safe space to ride.  
 
Member Sullivan asked if the survey distinguished between recreational or commuter trips. 
Dr. Agrawal noted a different project surveyed 2,500 adults in the United States asking if 
they use any micromobility for any purpose. About 5% of respondents noted they used an e-
bike in the last 12 months.  
 
Vice Chair Uy asked about efforts to rewrite the California Vehicle Code. Dr. Agrawal noted 
that the code is currently geared towards cars and that bicycles are an afterthought. 
 

6. Receive a presentation from the Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition on programs in San 



Mateo County. 
 
Matt Jones from the Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition (SVBC) presented on the 
organization’s mission, values, and upcoming events in San Mateo County. 
 
Member Sullivan suggested Caltrain coordination and co-promotion for Bike to Work Day. 
 
Member Robinson thanked Matt for SVBC’s work and noted attending ambassador training. 

 
7. Member Communications 

 
Member Rainaldi mentioned that the City of Millbrae is hosting a Bike Rodeo at Taylor Middle 
School on May 10. 
 
C/CAG Deputy Director Kaki Cheung noted that C/CAG is still recruiting for open seats on 
the committee.  
 

8. Adjournment 
 
Vice Chair Uy adjourned the meeting at 7:40 PM. 


